
NEVADA STATE  
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

March 3-4, 2021 
 
 

Zoom 
https://zoom.us/j/5886256671 

Meeting ID: 5886256671 
 

Please do not remove the book from the meeting room. 

1

https://zoom.us/j/5886256671


2

https://zoom.us/j/5886256671


2 of 8 

 

 
Public comment may also be submitted to the Board at pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov. 

 

Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi judicial 

proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the board may 

refuse to consider public comment.  See NRS 233B.126.  Please be aware that after the 
quasi-judicial board or commission has rendered a decision in the contested case and, 
assuming this happens before adjournment, the board or commission may entertain public 

comment on the proceeding at that time. 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call – Establishment of Quorum 
 
2. Public Comment:  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the 

agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a future agenda as an 
item.  (NRS 241.020) 

 
  CONSENT AGENDA   

 
The Consent Agenda contains matters of routine acceptance.  The Board Members may 
approve the consent agenda items as written or, at their discretion, may address individual 
items for discussion or change. 
 

3. Approval of the January 13, 2021 Meeting Minutes (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 

 
4. 4.1 Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy License – Non-appearance  

  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. Advances Diabetes Supply – Carlsbad, CA 
B. Allergy Partners Therapeutics – Asheville, NC 
C. Bristol Pharmacy – Flower Mound, TX 
D. Free State Pharmacy, LLC – Lawrence, KS 
E. JourniRx, Inc. – Portland, OR 
F. Kingsley Rx – Orange Park, FL 
G. Lumicera Health Services, LLC – Gaithersburg, MD 
H. OnePoint Patient Care – Tempe, AZ 
I. Pembrooke Health Services LLC – Waldorf, MD 
J. PFSP – Rahway, NJ 
K. Valley Vet Supply – Marysville, KS 
L. Wegmans Food Markets, Inc. – Cheektowaga, NY 

 
 4.2 Application for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License – Non-

appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

M. Broadway Apothecary – Eugene, OR 
N. Clark’s Pharmacy Rx – Carefree, AZ 
O. Covetrus Pharmacy Services, LLC – Phoenix, AZ 
P. DeliverCareRx Pharmacy, LLC – Livermore, CA 

3

mailto:pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov


3 of 8 

 

Q. Elements Compounding Pharmacy – Mesa, AZ 
R. Schaefer Drugs, Inc. – Wellington, FL 
S. Smith Drug Co. – Pleasant Grove, UT 
T. Your Health Pharmacy – Pompano Beach, FL 

 
4.3 Applications for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License 

– Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

U. Empire DME, Inc. – Brooklyn, NY 
V. ProCare Biomedical Repair, LLC – Houston, TX 
W. Strive Medical LLC – Irving, TX 

 
4.4 Applications for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License – 

Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

4.5 Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License – Non-appearance (FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

Background Check Not Required by Law.  

 
4.5.1 Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e))  
 
4.5.2 Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 
 

X. Aimmune Therapeutics, Inc. – Brisbane, CA 
Y. Ascendis Pharma, Inc. – Palo Alto, CA 
Z. Devatis, Inc. – San Clemente, CA 
AA. Kyowa Kirin, Inc. – Bedminster, NJ 
BB. Purisys, LLC – Athens, GA 
CC. Saol Therapeutics, Inc. – Roswell, GA 
DD. TWi Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. – Paramus, NJ 
EE. Virtus Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Bristol, PA 

 
4.5.3 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 

 
FF. MacroGenics, Inc. – Rockville, MD 

 
4.5.4 VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 
 

GG. Dynasty Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Lynnwood, WA 
HH. Independent Pharmacy Distributor LLC – High Point, NC 

 
4.5.5 Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 

 
4.5.5 Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 
 

II. Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – New Haven, CT 

4



4 of 8 

 

JJ. Assertio Therapeutics, Inc. – Lake Forest, IL 
KK. Orphazyme US, Inc. – Chicago, IL 

 
4.5.6 Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 
 

4.5.7 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. No 

Disqualifying Events. 
 

LL. Amatheon Animal Health, LLC – Miami, FL 
 

4.6 Application for Nevada Wholesaler License – Non-Appearance (FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 
 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 
 

MM. Bioverativ U.S. LLC – Reno, NV 
 

 4.7 Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Non-appearance (FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION) 
 

NN. ER at S. Las Vegas Blvd. – Las Vegas, NV 
OO. Grover C. Dils Medical Center – Caliente, NV  

 
  REGULAR AGENDA   

 

5. Disciplinary hearings pursuant to NRS 639.247.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. Charles Fleisher, MD                                                                                (20-227-CS-S) 
B. Michael L. Gerber, H.M.D                                                                         (17-015-CS-N) 
C. Eric Martin Math, MD                                                                                (19-083-CS-N) 
D. Daniel Niel, RPH                                                                                    (20-090-RPH-S) 
E. Vidur Mahadeva, MD                                                                                (20-111-CS-N) 

 
6. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician in Training Registration– Appearance.  

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. Jazmine Hewitt 
B. Joseph Repetti 

 

7. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician Registration– Appearance.  (FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. Leslie Costanza 
B. Kishan Desai 
C. Athiena Stafford  

 

5



5 of 8 

 

8. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration– Appearance.  (FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION) 
 

Ryan Doucette 
 

9. Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. Atlas Pharmacy and Medical Supply – Las Vegas, NV  
B. One Point Patient Care – Las Vegas, NV 
C. Optum Frontier Therapies II, LLC – Las Vegas, NV  
D. Silver State Drug – Caliente, NV 
E. Value Pharmacy – North Las Vegas, NV 

 
10. Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License – Appearance 

 (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. AlleReach Pharmacy – Dallas, TX 
B. Carolina Infusion – Ridgeland, SC 
C. Dragonfly Infusion Services – Wintersville, OH 
D. Meds In Motion – Draper, UT 

 
11. Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy License – Appearance 

 
A. Nextcare Pharmacy – Houston, TX 
B. TheraCom – Brooks, KY 

 
12. Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License – 

Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

A. Aircare Medical Inc. – Henderson, NV  
B. Barber DME Supply Group – Nellis AFB, NV 
C. Kinex Medical Company – Las Vegas, NV  
D. Patients Choice LLC – North Las Vegas, NV  
E. VieMed – Reno, NV 

 

13. Application for Nevada Wholesaler License – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
  

A. Lincare, Inc. – Sparks, NV – Background Check Not Required - Manufacturer (NAC 
639.593(7)(d)) – Disclosure 

B. Optum Frontier Therapies II, LLC – Background Check Not Required – Publicly 
Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) - Disclosure 

 

14. Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION) 
 

A. Animal Health International, Inc. – Red Bluff, CA – Background check completed. No 
Disqualifying Events- Disclosure 

6



6 of 8 

 

B. Celgene Corporation – Allentown, PA - Background Check Not Required - 
Manufactuer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593 (7)(c) and (d)) - Disclosure 

C. Celgene Corporation – Summit, NJ - Background Check Not Required - Manufactuer 
(NAC 639.593 (7)(d)) - Disclosure 

D. Huvepharma, Inc. – St. Louis, MO – Background Check Not Required - Manufactuer 
(NAC 639.593 (7)(d)) – Disclosure 

E. ICU Medical Sales, Inc. – Lancaster, TX – Background check completed. Disqualifying 
Events - Disclosure 

F. Pharmacia & Upjohn Company LLC – Kalamazoo, MI – Publicly Traded and 
Manufacturer (NAC 639.593 (7)(a) and (d)) – Disclosure 

G. Upjohn US 1 LLC – Peapack, NJ - Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593 
(7)(a) and (d)) 
 

15. Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility – Appearance (FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION) 
 

A. Eagle, Inc. – Hoover, AL 
B. Fagron Sterile Services LLC – Wichita, KS 
C. Nephron Sterile Compounding Center, LLC – West Columbia, SC 
D. Wells Pharma of Houston, LLC – Houston, TX 

 

16. Application for Pharmacist Registration by Reciprocation – Appearance (FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

Audrey Cho 
 
17. Request for approval of Continuing Education provided by the Nevada Geriatric 

Education Center:  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) 
 

High-risk Medications: Prescribed and Non-prescribed; Mobility and Independence:  
Impact of Frailty and Falls. 

 
18. General Counsel Report.  Note: The Board may exclude the public for a report on 

potential or existing litigation pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2). 
 
19. Executive Secretary Report: 
 

A. Financial Report 
B. Issuance of Temporary Licenses and Registrations 
C. Change of Address Business List 
D. Meetings with Other Health Care Regulatory Boards 
E. COVID-19 Response 
F. Licensing Software Update 
G. Licensing Activities Report 
H. PMP Integration 

 
 

7



7 of 8 

 

  PUBLIC HEARING  

Wednesday, March 3, 2021 – 1:30 pm 
 
20. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION): 
 

Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510: Schedule 1. The proposed 
amendment to NAC 453.510 will add certain benzodiazepines to the controlled substances 
listed in schedule 1.  (LCB File No. R143-20) 

  WORKSHOP  
 

Wednesday, March 3, 2021 – 1:30 pm 
 

21. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  

(FOR POSSIBLE ACTION): 
 

A. Amendment Of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.715, 639.718 and 639 

.720: Use of Mechanical Device to Dispense Prescription Drugs.  The proposed 
amendments will license the use of a mechanical device to furnish a prescription drug 
to a patient and revise regulatory requirements for mechanical devices. 
 

B. Amendment Of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) Chapter 453: Prescription 

Monitoring Program integration.  The proposed amendments will regulate the 
integration of the records of patients in the database of the computerized program 
established pursuant to NRS 453.162 with the electronic health records of 
practitioners. 
 

22. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 
  April 14 & 15, 2021 – Las Vegas, NV 
 
23. Public Comment:  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the 

agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a future agenda as an 
item.  (NRS 241.020) 

 
24. Adjournment 
 
Note: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public 

who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the 
meeting are necessary, please notify the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, 985 
Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite 206, Reno, NV, 89521, or call Kristopher 
Mangosing at (775) 850-1440, as soon as possible. 

 
Supporting materials or additional information regarding the meeting may be obtained from 
Shirley Hunting at (775) 850-1440, email shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov or 985 Damonte Ranch 
Parkway, Suite 206, Reno, Nevada, 89521. 

8

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162
mailto:shunting@pharmacy.nv.gov


8 of 8 

 

 
No Continuing Education credit, will be given for attending this Board meeting. 
 
This notice has been posted at www.notice.nv.gov and www.bop.nv.gov pursuant to 
Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006. 
 

9

http://www.notice.nv.gov/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

12



NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy, Ste 206, Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444

• Web Page: bop.nv.gov

1 of 10 

MINUTES 

January 13, 2021 

BOARD MEETING 

Pursuant to Governor Steve Sisolak’s Emergency Directive 006, there will be no physical 
location for this meeting. The meeting can be listened to or viewed live over Zoom.   

Via Videoconference at Zoom: 
https://zoom.us/j/5886256671 

or 

Via Teleconference at 1 (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 588 625 6671 

Board Members Present: 

Helen Park  Jade Jacobo  Krystal Freitas Gener Tejero 
Wayne Mitchell Rolf Zakariassen Richard Tomasso 

Board Staff Present: 

Dave Wuest Yenh Long  Shirley Hunting Courtney Lee 
Brett Kandt Joe Dodge  Dena McClish Kristopher Mangosing 
Sophia Long Ken Scheuber Shannon Reichman 

President Park read the mission statement of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy to 
reiterate the Board’s duty to carry out and enforce the provisions of Nevada Law to protect 
the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

Dave Wuest stated that this Board Meeting is being held over Zoom and is in compliance 
with the Governor’s directive and Open Meeting Laws for Nevada.  

1. Call to Order and Roll Call – Establishment of Quorum

President Park performed the roll call. All Board members were present and a quorum was 
established. 

13

https://zoom.us/j/5886256671


 

2 of 24 

 

 

2. Public Comment January 13, 2021, 9:14 AM 
 
There was no Public Comment.  
 
3. Approval of the December 2, 2020, Meeting Minutes  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the December 2, 2020 minutes 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
4. 4.1 Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy License – Non-appearance  
 

A. C3 Pharmacy – St. George, UT 
B. Cary Rx Incorporated – Washington DC 
C. CoAssist Pharmacy, LLC – Orlando, FL 
D. Continued Care LTC Pharmacy Idaho LLC – Boise, ID 
E. Eagle Pharmacy – Lakeland, FL 
F. Health Haven Pharmacy – Nashua, NH 
G. MedWiseRx – Phoenix, AZ 

 
 4.2 Application for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License – Non-

appearance  
 

H. Children’s Hospital Los Angeles Specialty Pharmacy – Los Angeles, CA 
I. Nationwide Compounding Rx, LLC – Scottsdale, AZ 

 
4.3 Applications for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License 

– Non-appearance  
 

J. Embody, Inc. – Norfolk, VA 
K. First Nation Group, LLC – Detroit, MI 
L. First Nation Group, LLC – Ft. Myers, FL. 
M. Mohawk DME – Akwesasne, NY 

 
4.4 Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License – Non-appearance  
 

Background Check Not Required by Law.  

 
4.4.1 Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e))  
 
4.4.2 Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 
 

14



 

3 of 24 

 

 

N. Aurinia Pharma U.S., Inc. – Rockville, MD 
O. Metuchen Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Manalapan Township, NJ 
P. Myovant Sciences, Inc. – Brisbane, CA 
Q. Solco Healthcare U.S. LLC – Somerset, NJ 
R. Urovant Sciences, Inc. – Irvine, CA 
S. Xiros, Inc. – Mansfield, MA 

 
4.4.3 Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 
 

T. McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. 
 
4.4.4 VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 
None 
 
4.5.5 Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 
 

U. Precision Dose, Inc. – South Beloit, IL 
 
4.4.5 Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 
 

V. Harmony Biosciences, LLC – Plymouth Meeting, PA 
W. Portola Pharmaceuticals, LLC – South San Francisco, CA 
X. Zyla Life Sciences US Inc. – Wayne, PA 

 
4.4.6 Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 
None 
 

4.4.7 Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. No 

Disqualifying Events. 
 

Y. Astor Pharmaceuticals LLC – Holtsville, NY 
Z. Oakrum Pharma, LLC – St. Louis, MO 
AA. Premier Pharmaceuticals LLC – Boise, ID 
BB. Redwood Distribution – El Paso, TX 
CC. Sobi, Inc. – Waltham, MA 
DD. US VET, INC. – Liverpool, NY 

 
Krystal Freitas expressed concern that the Facility Manager for Consent Agenda Item 4BB 
may not meet the requirements and asked that it be pulled from the Consent Agenda. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Item 

4BB.  
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 

15



 

4 of 24 

 

 

 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 
 

5. Disciplinary hearings pursuant to NRS 639.247.   
 
A. Kiarash L. Mirkia, MD                                                                         (19-090-CS-S) 

 
Kiarash Mirkia appeared and was sworn by President park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Melanie Thomas was present as counsel representing Dr. Mirkia. 
 
Brett Kandt, General Counsel, summarized the facts of the case and presented a Stipulation 
and Order for the Board’s consideration.  
 
The Stipulation and Order shall be considered public reprimand. Controlled substance 
registration number CS15197 for Dr. Mirkia shall remain in inactive status until proof that his 
License Number 12548 to practice medicine from the Nevada State Board of Medical 
Examiners is active and in good standing. Dr. Mirkia must appear before the Board and 
petition for reinstatement of his Controlled Substance Registration.  
 
Dr. Mirkia shall pay a fine of $1,500 to the state of Nevada and shall pay $1,000 to the Board 
for recoverable attorney fees and costs.  
 
Ms. Thomas had no objections to the Stipulation and Order presented and Mr. Kandt’s 
summary of the case.  
 
Board Action 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to accept the Stipulation and Order as presented.  
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

B. John Phoenix, APRN                                                                         (19-143-CS-S) 
 
John Phoenix appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Tracy Singh was present as counsel representing Mr. Phoenix.  
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case and presented a Stipulation and Order for the 
Board’s consideration.  
 

16



 

5 of 24 

 

 

The Stipulation and Order shall serve as a public reprimand. Mr. Phoenix shall pay $950 to 
the Board for recoverable attorney fees and costs.  
 
Ms. Singh had no objection to the Stipulation and Order presented and Mr. Kandt’s summary 
of the case.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the Stipulation and Order as presented. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action; Passed unanimously.  
 

C. Erika Smith, DDS                                                                               (19-123-CS-S) 
 
Dr. Smith was not present.  
 
Mr. Kandt called Shirley Hunting, Board Coordinator, as a witness.  
 
Ms. Hunting appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Dr. Smith the Notice of Intended Action and Accusation by 
certified mail. Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that Dr. Smith was properly 
served at her address of record.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that Exhibit A be admitted into the record.  
 
President Park admitted Exhibit A into the record.  
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit A to the Board. Exhibit A was documentation that Board Staff 
properly noticed Dr. Smith by certified mail to her address of record.  
 
Ken Scheuber, Board Investigator, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Scheuber answered Mr. Kandt’s questions regarding a phone conversation Mr. Scheuber 
had regarding serving Dr. Smith her Notice of Intended Action and Accusation.  
 
Mr. Kandt stated that the Notice of Intended Action and Accusation were also emailed to Dr. 
Smith’s email address of record.  
 
Mr. Kandt stated that Board Staff properly noticed Dr. Smith and asked that the Board move 
to find that the respondent has been properly noticed in compliance with NRS 639.242. 
 

17



 

6 of 24 

 

 

Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to find that respondent Dr. Erika Smith was properly 

noticed in compliance with NRS 639.242 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked the Board to find that they have jurisdiction over this matter as stated in 
paragraph one of the Notice of Intended Action and Accusation,  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that the Board has jurisdiction over this matter. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board make Findings of Fact consistent with paragraphs two and 
three of the Accusation, that Erika Smith’s license to practice as a dentist was revoked by the 
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners.  She was later served with Notice of Intended 
Action and Accusation by the Nevada Board of Pharmacy, and that the revocation of her 
license to practice dentistry operated as the immediate suspension of her registration with 
the Board. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to make Findings of Fact consistent with paragraphs two 

and three of the Accusation, that Erika Smith’s license to practice as a dentist 
was revoked by the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners and that she was 
served with Notice of Intended Action and Accusation by the Nevada Board of 
Pharmacy. The revocation of her license to practice dentistry operated as the 
immediate suspension of her registration with the Board. 

 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board move to make Conclusions of Law consistent with 
paragraphs four through nine of the Accusation, and the Causes of Action alleged therein. 
 
Board Action: 
 

18



 

7 of 24 

 

 

Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to make Conclusions of Law consistent with paragraphs 
four through nine of the Accusation, and the Causes of Action alleged therein 

 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board revoke Erika Smith’s Controlled Substance Registration 
number CS17603, effective immediately, and be effective for a minimum of one year before 
she may petition for reinstatement.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to revoke Erika Smith’s Controlled Substance Registration 

number CS17603, effective immediately, and be effective for a minimum of one 
year before she may petition for reinstatement. 

 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

D. Derek Braddix, APRN                                                                    (17-125-CS-A-N) 
 
Derek Braddix appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Kandt summarized the facts of the case and stated that Mr. Braddix provided additional 
documents, and requested that they be admitted into the record. 
 
President Park admitted the documents into the record. 
 
Mr. Braddix stated that his APRN license was not renewed in November 2020. As his license 
is expired, he asked that no action be taken against his license.  
 
Mr. Kandt provided insight into the legalities surrounding Mr. Braddix’s DEA Surrender for 
Cause. 
 
Mr. Braddix answered questions regarding the investigation of his DEA registration. 
 
Mr. Kandt asked the Board to move that they have jurisdiction over this matter as alleged in 
paragraph one of the Accusation. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that the Board has jurisdiction over this matter as stated 

in Paragraph one of the Accusation. 

19



 

8 of 24 

 

 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board make Findings of Fact consistent with paragraphs two, three 
and four of the Accusation, and an additional Finding of Fact that the respondent’s license 
with the Nevada State Board of Nursing expired on or about November 8, 2020.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to make Finding of Facts consistent with paragraphs 

two, three, and four of the Accusation, and an additional Finding of Fact that 
Mr. Braddix’s license with the Nevada State Board of Nursing expired on or 
about November 8, 2020. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked the Board to make Conclusions of Law consistent with paragraphs five and 
six of the Accusation, and an additional Conclusion of Law that the respondent does not 
qualify to hold a Controlled Substance Registration because he is not licensed with the 
Nevada State Board of Nursing.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to make Conclusions of Law consistent with paragraphs 

five and six of the Accusation, and an additional Conclusion of Law that the 
respondent does not qualify to hold a Controlled Substance Registration 
because he is not licensed with the Nevada State Board of Nursing 

 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board revoke the respondent’s certificate of registration number 
CS25303 effective immediately and that the respondent may not petition for reinstatement of 
licensure with the Board for a minimum of one year. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to revoke the respondent’s certificate of registration 

number CS25303 effective immediately and that the respondent may not 
petition for reinstatement of licensure with the Board for a minimum of one 
year. 

20



 

9 of 24 

 

 

 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

E. Jesse Mai, FNP-C                                                                              (19-054-CS-S) 
 
Jesse Mai was not present. 
 
Mr. Kandt provided background that Jesse Mai surrendered his DEA Certificate of 
Registration Number MR2801288 for cause and is subject to discipline pursuant to NRS 
453.236(1) and NRS 453.241(1).  
 
Mr. Kandt called Ms. Hunting as a witness.  
 
Ms. Hunting testified that she sent Dr. Mai the Notice of Intended Action and Accusation by 
certified mail. Ms. Hunting reviewed documentation showing that Dr. Mai was properly served 
at his address of record.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that Exhibit A be admitted into the record.  
 
President Park admitted Exhibit A into the record.  
 
Mr. Kandt presented Exhibit A to the Board. Exhibit A was documentation that Board Staff 
properly noticed Dr. Mai by certified mail to her address of record.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that Dr. Mai’s surrender for cause of his DEA Registration be admitted into 
the record. 
 
President Park admitted Dr. Mai’s surrender for cause of his DEA Registration into the 
record. 
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board find that Dr. Mai was given sufficient legal notice of this 
hearing  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to find that Dr. Mai was given sufficient legal notice of 

this hearing. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board find that they have jurisdiction over this matter consistent 
with paragraph one of the Accusation. 

21



 

10 of 24 

 

 

 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to find that the Board has jurisdiction over this matter 

consistent with paragraph one of the Accusation. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board make Findings of Fact consistent with paragraphs two, three 
and four of the Accusation.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to make Findings of Fact consistent with paragraphs two, 

three, and four of the Accusation. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board move to make Conclusions of Law consistent with 
paragraphs five and six of the Accusation.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to make Conclusions of Law consistent with paragraphs 

five and six of the Accusation. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Kandt asked that the Board revoke Dr. Mai’s Certificate of Registration Number CS20701 
effectively immediately and that Dr. Mai may not petition for reinstatement of his Controlled 
Substance Registration for one year.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved to revoke Certificate of Registration Number CS20701 

for Dr. Mai effective immediately, and that Dr. Mai may not petition for 
reinstatement of his license for one year.  

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 

22



 

11 of 24 

 

 

Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

F. Dhaval Shah, MD                                                                               (20-222-CS-S) 
 
Johnathon Fayeghi, legal counsel for Dhaval Shah was present.  
 
Dhaval Shah appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Mr. Kandt provided background information and presented a Stipulation and Order for the 
Board’s consideration. Dr. Shah’s Certificate of Registration Number CS15290 and PD00165 
shall be revoked and the respondent may not petition for reinstatement for a minimum of one 
year.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Stipulation and Order as presented. 
 
Second; Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

G. Richard Washinsky, MD                                                                    (19-232-CS-S) 
 
Richard Washinsky, MD, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony.  
 
Kevin Murphy was present as legal counsel representing Dr. Washinsky.  
 
Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background and presented a Stipulation and Order 
for the Board’s consideration. Dr. Washinsky’s Certificate of Registration Number CS06491 
be revoked, the revocation stayed, and Dr. Washinsky placed on probation for two years 
effective immediately. This Stipulation and Order shall serve as a public reprimand. Dr. 
Washinsky shall pay a fine of five thousand dollars, and shall pay two thousand dollars to the 
Board for recoverable attorney fees and costs. Dr. Washinsky shall comply with all federal 
and state laws.  Upon successful completion of probation, Dr. Washinsky’s Certificate of 
Registration Number CS06491 shall be fully restored, conditioned upon good standing with 
the Nevada Medical Board and DEA.  
 
Kevin Murphy stated that there are no objections to the Stipulation and Order and clarified 
that Dr. Washinsky did not intentionally violate Nevada Law. The Nevada Medical Board has 
fined Dr.Washinsky seven thousand five hundred dollars.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to accept the Stipulation and Order as presented.  

23



 

12 of 24 

 

 

 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Aye:  Jacobo, Freitas, Tejero, Park 
Nay:  Mitchell, Zakariassen, Tomasso 
 
Action: Motion carries.  
 

6. Application for Ambulatory Surgery Center License. – Appearance.  (FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION) 
 

A. Affordable Excellence Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV 
 
This Agenda Item was heard in conjunction with Items 6B and 6C.  
 
Mary Grear, managing pharmacist, and Jeremy Lipshutz, Owner, were present.  
 
Mr. Lipshutz and Ms. Grear appeared and were sworn by President Park prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony.  
 
Dave Wuest stated that these applications were on the consent agenda from a previous 
Board meeting.  Mr. Lipshutz was asked to appear to provide more information on a pending 
litigation he disclosed on the applications. 
 
Mr. Lipshutz described the circumstances regarding his pending litigation.  He stated that the 
case was still pending, but explained that the case was regarding billing issues and there was 
no patient harm involved in the case. 
 
After discussion, President Park offered Mr. Lipshutz and Ms. Grear the option to table this 
matter until Mr. Lipshutz’s pending case is resolved.  
 
President Park tabled the applications for Affordable Excellence Surgery Center, First 
Specialty Surgery Center and Ultimate Specialty Surgery Center at Mr. Lipshutz request.  
 

B. First Specialty Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV 
 
This Item was heard in conjunction with Agenda Item 6A.  
  

C. Ultimate Specialty Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV  
 
This Item was heard in conjunction with Agenda Item 6A. 
 
7. Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Appearance  

 
Plus One Pharmacy, LLC – Las Vegas, NV  
 

24



 

13 of 24 

 

 

Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background information and stated that Plus One 
Pharmacy appeared at a previous meeting.  The matter was tabled due to the Board’s 
concerns regarding the managing pharmacist’s experience.  
 
Anisha Patel, Owner, and Christy Nguyen, managing pharmacist, appeared and were sworn 
by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Nguyen answered the Board’s questions regarding her experience as a managing 
pharmacist. 
 
Joe Dodge stated that Ms. Nguyen worked at All City Pharmacy II.  He explained that All City 
Pharmacy II  had a fire and has been closed permanently. Ms. Nguyen worked at All City 
Pharmacy II and was not the last pharmacist in charge there.  
 
After discussion, the Board expressed concern regarding Ms. Nguyen’s lack of experience as 
a managing pharmacist. 
 
President Park offered Ms. Patel the option to table Plus One Pharmacy, LLC’s Application. 
 
President Park tabled Plus One Pharmacy, LLC’s application at Ms. Patel’s request.  

 
8. Applications for Nevada Compounding Pharmacy License – Appearance 
 

A. Monicos Pharmacy LLC – Las Vegas, NV 
 
President Park disclosed that Karen Chan was a former student, but she stated that she is 
able to participate fairly and without bias in this matter. 
 
Krystal Freitas disclosed a previous employment relationship with Karen Chan, but stated 
that she is able to participate fairly and without bias.  
 
Ronak Desai, managing pharmacist, and Tamer Usef, Owner, appeared and were sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Joe Dodge questioned Ms. Desai about non-sterile compounding procedures, types of 
compounded medications, her experience with non-sterile compounding, and beyond use 
date of compounded medications. 
 
Mr. Usef disclosed that while he was in college, he was arrested for possessing a fake ID 
and for making fake ID’s. A few months ago, he was arrested for driving under the influence. 
That charge is still pending.  
 
Mr. Usef and Ms. Desai answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 

25



 

14 of 24 

 

 

Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to approve the application for Monicos Pharmacy, 
LLC. 

 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

B. Pahrump Care Pharmacy – Las Vegas, NV 
 
Waseem Sarwar, managing pharmacist, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Joe Dodge questioned Mr. Sarwar regarding his pharmacy experience with non-sterile 
compounding.  
 
Mr. Sarwar answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the application for Pahrump Care Pharmacy. 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
9. Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License  

 
A. Archway Apothecary – Covington, LA 

 
E. Raymond Wilkes Jr, managing pharmacist, and Matthew Hardey, owner, appeared and 
were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Joe Dodge questioned Mr. Wilkes about his work history, experience with sterile and non-
sterile compounded medications, beyond use dates for compounded medications, 
sterilization processes and product testing.  
 
Mr. Wilkes and Mr. Hardey answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to approve the Out of State Pharmacy License 

application for Archway Apothecary.  
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

26



 

15 of 24 

 

 

 
B. Pope Shenouda LLC – Holiday, FL 

 
George Hanna, managing pharmacist, and Mina Shenouda, Intern, appeared and were 
sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Dave Wuest provided background that Pope Shenouda had previously appeared but tabled 
their application to have the compounding pharmacist appear and answer the Board’s 
questions.  
 
Mr. Hanna stated that Pope Shenouda is appearing to answer questions regarding the 
competency of the managing pharmacist and the compounding intern.  
 
Joe Dodge questioned Mr. Hanna about the compounding intern and his responsibilities. Mr. 
Hanna stated that Mr. Shenouda was the intern and is now the pharmacist.  
 
After Board discussion, it was discovered that Mr. Shenouda is not yet licensed as a 
pharmacist. 
  
The Board expressed concern regarding Mr. Hanna’s knowledge regarding sterile 
compounding and that Mr. Hanna incorrectly represented Mr. Shenouda as a licensed 
pharmacist. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion President Park moved to deny the Nevada Compounding License for Pope 

Shenouda. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
10. Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License  

 
A. ActivStyle, Inc. – Reno, NV 

 
Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background that ActivStyle previously appeared 
but the application was tabled. They are reappearing for reconsideration of approval for their 
MDEG application.  
 
Rolf Zakariassen disclosed that he was employed at the CVS store where Ms. Bussard listed 
that she was employed.  He stated that he is able to participate in this matter fairly and 
without bias.  
 
Mr. Zakariassen stated that he was unfamiliar with Ms. Bussard’s employment history at 
CVS. 

27



 

16 of 24 

 

 

 
Amanda Bussard, MDEG Administrator, and Shontaia Dixon, Compliance Officer, appeared 
and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Ms. Dixon stated that the MDEG Administrator has been given additional training. Ms. 
Bussard discussed her work experience related to being the MDEG administrator.  
 
The Board discussed concern about the legitimacy of the hours listed by Ms. Bussard to 
qualify her to be the MDEG Administrator.   
 
President Park offered Ms. Dixon and Ms. Bussard the option to table ActivSyle, Inc.’s 
application. 
 
President Park tabled ActivStyle, Inc.’s application at Ms. Dixon’s request.  
 

B. First Care Medical Supply LLC – Las Vegas, NV  
 
Knarik Avagyan, Director, and Sarah Katrzhyan, MDEG Administrator, appeared and were 
sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Dave Wuest provided background information and stated that First Care Medical Supply LLC 
had previously appeared and had requested their application be tabled.  
 
The Board questioned Ms. Katrzhyan about her work experience. Ms. Katrzhyan did not 
answer questions to the Board’s satisfaction and did not meet the requirements to be the 
MDEG Administrator.  
 
President Park offered Ms. Avagyan the option to table First Care Medical Supply LLC’s 
application. 
 
President Park tabled First Care Medical Supply LLC’s application at Ms. Avagyan’s request.  
 

C. Nevada Limb & Brace, LLC – Henderson, NV 
 
Roger Beihl, MDEG Administrator, and Vanis Gardea, director, appeared and were sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.  
 
Richard Tomasso was absent for the beginning of this Item but a quorum was still present.  
 
Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background that this is a new MDEG license and 
administrator application. Nevada Limb & Brace, LLC appeared at a previous meeting where 
the application was tabled. They are appearing for consideration of the MDEG License in the 
state of Nevada.  
 
Richard Tomasso returned and a quorum was still present.  
 

28



 

17 of 24 

 

 

Mr. Beihl answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his work experience and 
the products and services provided by Nevada Limb & Brace, LLC. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the In-State Application for MDEG facility 

Nevada Limb & Brace, LLC. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

D. VieMed – Reno, NV 
 
Brett Stoute, Chief Operations Officer, and Brandylin Trimble, MDEG Administrator, 
appeared and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering 
testimony.  
 
Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background information that VieMed had 
appeared at a previous Board Meeting, but the application was tabled at Mr. Stoute’s 
request.  
 
Ms. Trimble answered questions regarding her work experience related to being the MDEG 
Administrator.  
 
After discussion, the Board expressed concern about potential unlicensed practice at 
VieMed’s Reno location.  
 
President Park offered Mr. Stoute the option to table VieMed’s application. 
 
President Park tabled VieMed’s application at Mr. Stoute’s request.  
 
11. Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility  

 
Sincerus Florida, LLC – Pompano Beach, FL 
 

Jenny Liu, pharmacist in charge, Jonathan Fenster, Chief Operating Officer, and Abul 
Bhuiyan, Vice President of Scientific Affairs, and Ondrej Staviscak-Diaz, Sincerus General 
Counsel, appeared and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony.  
 
Joe Dodge, Board Inspector, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony.  
 
Bill Stilling was present as legal counsel for Sincerus Florida LLC. 
 

29



 

18 of 24 

 

 

Gener Tejero disclosed a professional relationship with Mr. Stilling but stated that he is able 
to participate fairly and without bias.  
 
Dave Wuest, Executive Secretary, provided background information and stated that Sincerus 
Florida LLC had previously appeared and requested to table their application at that time.  
 
Mr. Dodge questioned Sincerus Florida LLC about the non-sterile compounded medications 
that will be shipped to Nevada, policies and procedures, and past FDA inspections.  
 
Sincerus Florida LLC answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Out of State Outsourcing Facility license 

application for Sincerus Florida LLC. 
 
Second: Helen Park 
 
Aye: Mitchell, Jacobo, Park, Freitas, Tomasso, Zakariassen 
 
Nay: Tejero 
 
Action Motion carries.  
 

 
12. Discussion and Possible Action to Request an Attorney General's Opinion pursuant to 

NRS 228.150 on whether Nevada law authorizes the Board to license and regulate 
wholesalers of veterinary biological products and/or animal vaccine products in 
Nevada; and if so, whether such authority is preempted by federal law. 

 
Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background that the Board is asking for approval 
to seek an Attorney General’s Opinion on the ability of the Board to regulate wholesalers of 
veterinary biological products and/or animal vaccine products in Nevada. 
 
Ms. Lee discussed definitions of Nevada Pharmacy Law and the implications of regulating 
the wholesalers of veterinary biological products and/or animal vaccine products in Nevada.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to grant Board Staff the authority to seek the Attorney 

General’s Opinion on the ability of the Board to regulate the wholesalers of 
veterinary biological products and/or animal vaccine products in Nevada; and if 
so, whether such authority is preempted by federal law 

 
Second: Richard Tomasso 
 

30



 

19 of 24 

 

 

Action: Passed unanimously.  
 

Mr. Kandt clarified for the record that there is a distinction between regulating biological 
products and regulation of a party transporting that product into the State of Nevada. 
 
President Park opened the floor to Public Comment.  
 
Trevor Newhouse, attorney, stated that there is a conflict between regulatory agencies and 
agrees that an opinion from the Attorney General would be of value. 
 
President Park closed Public Comment  

 
13. Discussion and possible action on approval of Asher College as a program of training 

for pharmaceutical technicians pursuant to NAC 639.256  
 
Kathryn Johnson, Bill Zavatchon, Ann Buzak, were present. 
 
Mr. Wuest provided background information and discussed the requirements for 
pharmaceutical technician training programs.  
 
Ms. Johnson answered questions regarding Asher College’s training curriculum and policies 
and procedures. 
 
Ms. Johnson stated that Asher College is still in candidate status for accreditation.  She 
explained the policies for drug testing students. 
 
After discussion, President Park offered Ms. Johnson the option to table Asher College’s 
request. 
 
President Park tabled this matter at Ms. Johnson request.  
 
14. General Counsel Report.  Note: The Board may exclude the public for a report on 

potential or existing litigation pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2). 
 
Brett Kandt, General Counsel, discussed the results of litigation involving the Board.  
 
15. Executive Secretary Report: 
 

A. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Wuest presented the financials to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 

B. Issuance of Temporary Licenses and Registrations 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that there were three additional temporary licenses issued to Pharmacy 
Interns to assist in COVID-19 vaccinations. 

31



 

20 of 24 

 

 

 
C. Change of Address Business List 
D. Meetings with Other Health Care Regulatory Boards 
E. COVID-19 Response 

 
President Park thanked Board Staff for their efforts in assisting with vaccinations and keeping 
the daily operations of the Board in effect.  
 

F. Licensing Software Update 
G. Licensing Activities Report 
H. PMP Integration 

 
16. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  
 

Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.  The proposed amendment 
revises provisions relating to the operation of pharmacies in recovery centers and surgical 
centers for ambulatory patients. (LCB File No. R085-20) 
 
Brett Kandt, General Counsel, summarized the proposed amendments 
 
Mr. Kandt recommended one revision to the proposed language to remove duplicative fees. 
 
President Park opened Public Comment.  
 
Scott Weiss, President for The Healthcare Consulting Group LLC,  expressed support of the 
proposed language  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to adopt the proposed regulation LCB File No. R085-20 

with the recommended amendment as presented by Board Staff. 
 
Action: Krystal Freitas 
 
Second: Passed unanimously.  

 
17. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  
 

A. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.220 Schedule of 

fees; penalty for late renewal; exemptions from certain fees. The proposed 
amendment to NAC 639.220 will provide medical interns and residents reduced 
fees to prescribe or possess controlled substances and to biennially renew such 
authorization.  

 

32



 

21 of 24 

 

 

Courtney Lee, General Counsel, provided background and stated that this proposed 
amendment to NAC 639.220 will provide medical interns and residents reduced fees to 
prescribe or possess controlled substances and to biennially renew such authorization. 
 
President Park opened the floor to Public Comment. 
 
There was no Public Comment.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to submit the proposed regulation to LCB and move 

forward to Public Hearing. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  

 

B. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.742, 639.743, 

639.744. and 639.745:  Dispensing Practitioners.  The proposed amendments 
will modify the supervision of dispensing technician by dispensing practitioners. 
These amendments will authorize dispensing practitioners in group practices to 
share an inventory of certain medications and centralize activities. The proposed 
amendments will increase the fees for the application for an initial registration, 
and the biennial renewal of a registration, as a registered dispensing technician. 

 
David Wuest, Executive Secretary, provided background information.  
 
Brett Kandt, General Counsel, read the proposed language into the record. 

 
President Park opened the Public Comment.  
 
Rupesh Parikh, Oncologist and President for Comprehensive Cancer Centers of Nevada, 
expressed his support for this proposed amendment along with some concerns.  
 
Dr. Brian Vaicuna, Medical Oncologist for Comprehensive Cancer Centers of Nevada, 
expressed support of this proposed amendment. 
 
Helen O’Hallan, patient of Dr. Parikh, provided background information of her cancer history. 
Ms. O’Hallan expressed support of the proposed amendment due to convenience and trust in 
her physicians.  
Ed Cowell, patient of Dr. Vaicuna, provided background information of his cancer history. Mr. 
Cowell expresses support of the proposed amendment due to convenience. 
 
Sue Cowell, wife of patient, providee her background from a caregiver perspective of a 
cancer patient. Mrs. Cowell expressed support of the proposed amendment. 
 

33



 

22 of 24 

 

 

Peyton Barcel, granddaughter of a patient, provided background of her grandfather’s cancer 
history. Ms. Barcel expressed support of this proposed amendment to help improve the 
quality of life for a cancer patient. 
 
Lindsey Harmon, Executive Director for Planned Parenthood Nevada, expressed her support 
for this proposed amendment. 
 
Liz MacMenamin, VP of Government Affairs for the Retail Association of Nevada, expressed 
opposition to the proposed language and described her concerns regarding the proposed 
amendment. 
 
Wes Falconer, CEO of Cancer Care Specialist in Reno, provided background information on 
cancer patients and the oral dispensing medicine program. Mr. Falconer expressed support 
of this proposed amendment. 
 
Jon Bilstein, Executive Director for Comprehensive Cancer Centers of Nevada, thanked the 
Board for allowing public comment from the physicians, patients, and caregivers and 
expressed support of the proposed language. 
 
Jaron Hildebrand, Executive Director of the Nevada State Medical Association, expressed 
support for the proposed amendment to help improve patient care. 
 
Rupesh Parikh wanted to address comments made by Ms. MacMenamin earlier regarding 
cost. Dr. Parikh stated that they are trying to save cost not add to cost to the patient.  Dr. 
Parikh further clarified, dispensing of drugs, and cost. 
 
Ms. MacMenamin expressed her concern further regarding practitioners dispensing drugs 
 
President Park closed public comment. 
 
Board discussion ensued regarding the clarifying the proposed amendment, dispensing cost, 
and the process of the dispensing medication.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to forward the proposed regulation to LCB and move 

forward to Public Hearing.  
 
Second: Gener Tejero 
 
Aye:  Tejero, Mitchell, Park, Freitas, Tomasso, Zakariassen 
 
Nay:  Jacobo 
 
Action: Motion carries.  
 

34



 

23 of 24 

 

 

C. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639  The proposed 
amendments will add a new section providing that drugs compounded by a 
pharmacy, dispensing practitioner, or outsourcing facility cannot be dispensed, 
resold, supplied, or furnished by any entity other than the licensed entity that 
compounded the drug. Outsourcing facilities must have procedures to prohibit 
the dispensing of their compounded products by other entities. Drugs 
compounded by an outsourcing facility may be administered pursuant to an order 
of a practitioner. 

 
Mr. Wuest provided background information. 
 
Mr. Dodge read the proposed amendment into the record. 
 
President Park opened the floor to Public Comment.  
 
Ondrej Staviscak-Diaz, Sincerus Outsourcing, expressed that he is not in support of the 
proposed amendments.  
 
Aaron Lopez, representative from Political Capitol representing 503A and 503B facilities, 
appeared and expressed concern with the proposed amendments limiting patient access to 
the medications provided by the Outsourcing facilities. 
  
Lee Rosebush, chairman of the 503B Trade Association, appeared and expressed 
opposition to the proposed language.  Mr. Rosebush asked the Board not to approve the 
proposed language and stated that the proposed language could negatively effect 
Outsourcing facilities.  
 
Gu Quadja, Nubrator Rx, appeared and expressed opposition to the proposed language.  
Ms. Quadja stated that the proposed language would create hardships for providers who are 
trying to get medication compounded by the outsourcing facilities. 
 
Robert Nickell, compounding pharmacist, expressed that there are differences between 503A 
and 503B facilities and with the proposed amendments, there are logistical implications. Mr. 
Nickell asked the Board to not accept the proposed regulation. 
 
Jay McEniry, Senior Vice President for legal and governmental affairs for Fagron North 
America in the division of regulatory affairs, appeared expressed opposition to the proposed 
language and asked the Board to not proceed with the proposed amendments.  
 
The Board discussion ensued regarding the proposed language and if there was guidance 
from the FDA regarding regulating outsourcing facilities. 
 
President Park closed Public Comment.  
 
Board Action: 
 

35



 

24 of 24 

 

 

Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the proposed regulations and move the 
language to LCB and move on to Public Hearing. 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously.  
 
18. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 
  March 3-4, 2021 – Reno, NV 
 
19. Public Comment 5:30 PM 
 
There was no Public Comment.  
 
20. Adjournment 

36



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4A

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4B

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4C

60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4D

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4E

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4F

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4G

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4H

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4I

145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4J

156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4K

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4L

180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4M

189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4N

200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4O

209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4P

222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4Q

233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4R

241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4S

256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4T

266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4U

274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4V

287



288



289



290



291



292



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4W

293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4X

305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4Y

326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4Z

345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4AA

365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4BB

387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4CC

412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4DD

436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4EE

455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4FF

473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4GG

488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4HH

504



505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4II

522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4JJ

557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4KK

580



581



582



583



584



585



586



587



588



589



590



591



592



593



594



595



596



597



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4LL

598



599



600



601



602



603



604



605



606



607



608



609



610



611



612



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4MM

613



614



615



616



617



618



619



620



621



622



623



624



625



626



627



628



629



630



631



632



633



634



635



636



637



638



639



640



641



642



643



644



645



646



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4NN

647



648



649



650



651



652



653



654



655



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4OO

656



657



658



659



660



661



662



663



664



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

665



MATRIX GUIDELINE FOR 
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

1st Action 2nd Action 3rd Action 

Non ingested error Letter Letter Hearing 
Counseling CE + 

No counseling $750.00 $1000.00 Hearing 

Attorney Fees and Costs Actual Actual  Actual 

Ingested no potential harm  $500.00 $1000.00 Hearing 

Ingested with potential harm 
or adverse outcomes $1000.00 Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with negative outcome 
or patient discomfort. 
No institution intervention  Hearing Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with significant negative 
health circumstance. 
With institution admit Hearing Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with death related to 
inappropriate drug therapy  Hearing Hearing Hearing 

The investigative committee will review each case individually and may recommend a board 
hearing, particularly with mitigating circumstances such as inappropriate technician 
involvement or pharmacist malfeasance. 

In certain cases with ingested errors and significant negative health circumstances requiring 
institutional care, the investigative committee recommendation will be a board hearing. 

In all death cases resulting from inappropriate drug therapy a board hearing will occur. 

Attorney fees and costs may be added in contested disciplinary actions requiring extensive 
attorney preparation and presentation and are not described in the above matrix. 

The board has directed that ownership may be charged in disciplinary cases.  In non-ingested 
errors copies of admonition letters will be sent to management.  Accumulative actions for 
ownership monitoring will be based upon a 3 year period.  All actions including non-ingested 
errors will be given a case number and monitored. 

The Board has the authority to fine from $0.00 to $10,000 for each Cause of Action. 

Updated May 2019 

666



667



668



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5A

669



670



671



672



673



674



675



676



677



678



679



680



681



682



683



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5B

684



685



686



687



688



689



690



691



692



693



694



695



696



697



698



699



700



701



702



703



704



705



706



707



708



709



710



711



712



713



714



715



716



717



718



719



720



721



722



723



724



725



726



727



728



729



730



731



732



733



734



735



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5C

736



737



738



739



740



741



742



743



744



745



746



747



748



749



750



751



752



753



754



755



756



757



758



759



760



761



762



763



764



765



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5D

766



767



768



769



770



771



772



773



774



775



776



777



778



779



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5E

780



781



782



783



784



785



786



787



788



789



790



791



792



793



794



795



796



797



798



799



800



801



802



803



804



805



806



807



808



809



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

810



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6A

811



812



813



814



815



816



817



818



819



820



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6B

821



822



823



824



825



826



827



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

828



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7A

829



830



831



832



833



834



835



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7B

836



837



838



839



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7C

840



841



842



843



844



845



846



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

847



848



849



850



851



852



853



854



855



856



857



858



859



860



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

861



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9A

862



863



864



865



866



867



868



869



870



871



872



873



874



875



876



877



878



879



880



881



882



883



884



885



886



887



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9B

888



889



890



891



892



893



894



895



896



897



898



899



900



901



902



903



904



905



906



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9C

907



908



909



910



911



912



913



914





916



917



918



919



920



921



922



923



924



925



926



927



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9D

928



929



930



931



932



933



934



935



936



937



938



939



940



941



942



943



944



945



946



947



948



949



950



951



952



953



954



955



956



957



958



959



960



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9E

961



962



963



964



965



966



967



968



969



970



971



972



973



974



975



976



977



978



979



980



981



982



983



984



985



986



987



988



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10

989



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10A

990



991



992



993



994



995



996



997



998



999



1000



1001



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10B

1002



1003



1004



1005



1006



1007



1008



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10C

1009



1010



1011



1012



1013



1014



1015



1016



1017



1018



1019



1020



1021



1022



1023



1024



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10D

1025



1026



1027



1028



1029



1030



1031



1032



1033



1034



1035



1036



1037



1038



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

1039



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11A

1040



1041



1042



1043



1044



1045



1046



1047



1048



1049



1050



1051



1052



1053



1054



1055



1056



1057



1058



1059



1060



1061



1062



1063



1064



1065



1066



1067



1068



1069



1070



1071



1072



1073



1074



1075



1076



1077



1078



1079



1080



1081



1082



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11B

1083



1084



1085



1086



1087



1088



1089



1090



1091



1092



1093



1094



1095



1096



1097



1098



1099



1100



1101



1102



1103



1104



1105



1106



1107



1108



1109



1110



1111



1112



1113



1114



1115



1116



1117



1118



1119



1120



1121



1122



1123



1124



1125



1126



1127



1128



1129



1130



1131



1132



1133



1134



1135



1136



1137



1138



1139



1140



1141



1142



1143



1144



1145



1146



1147



1148



1149



1150



1151



1152



1153



1154



1155



1156



1157



1158



1159



1160



1161



1162



1163



1164



1165



1166



1167



1168



1169



1170



1171



1172



1173



1174



1175



1176



1177



1178



1179



1180



1181



1182



1183



1184



1185



1186



1187



1188



1189



1190



1191



1192



1193



1194



1195



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

1196



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12A

1197



1198



1199



1200



1201



1202



1203



1204



1205



1206



1207



1208



1209



1210



1211



1212



1213



1214



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12B

1215



1216



1217



1218



1219



1220



1221



1222



1223



1224



1225



1226



1227



1228



1229



1230



1231



1232



1233



1234



1235



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12C

1236



1237



1238



1239



1240



1241



1242



1243



1244



1245



1246



1247



1248



1249



1250



1251



1252



1253



1254



1255



1256



1257



1258



1259



1260



1261



1262



1263



1264



1265



1266



1267



1268



1269



1270



1271



1272



1273



1274



1275



1276



1277



1278



1279



1280



1281



1282



1283



1284



1285



1286



1287



1288



1289



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12D

1290



1291



1292



1293



1294



1295



1296



1297



1298



1299



1300



1301



1302



1303



1304



1305



1306



1307



1308



1309



1310



1311



1312



1313



1314



1315



1316



1317



1318



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12E

1319



1320



1321



1322



1323



1324



1325



1326



1327



1328



1329



1330



1331



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

1332



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13A

1333



1334



1335



1336



1337



1338



1339



1340



1341



1342



1343



1344



1345



1346



1347



1348



1349



1350



1351



1352



1353



1354



1355



1356



1357



1358



1359



1360



1361



1362



1363



1364



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13B

1365



1366



1367



1368



1369



1370



1371



1372



1373



1374



1375



1376



1377



1378



1379



1380



1381



1382



1383



1384



1385



1386



1387



1388



1389



1390



1391



1392



1393



1394



1395



1396



1397



1398



1399



1400



1401



1402



1403



1404



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

1405



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14A

1406



1407



1408



1409



1410



1411



1412



1413



1414



1415



1416



1417



1418



1419



1420



1421



1422



1423



1424



1425



1426



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14B

1427



1428



1429



1430



1431



1432



1433



1434



1435



1436



1437



1438



1439



1440



1441



1442



1443



1444



1445



1446



1447



1448



1449



1450



1451



1452



1453



1454



1455



1456



1457



1458



1459



1460



1461



1462



1463



1464



1465



1466



1467



1468



1469



1470



1471



1472



1473



1474



1475



1476



1477



1478



1479



1480



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14C

1481



1482



1483



1484



1485



1486



1487



1488



1489



1490



1491



1492



1493



1494



1495



1496



1497



1498



1499



1500



1501



1502



1503



1504



1505



1506



1507



1508



1509



1510



1511



1512



1513



1514



1515



1516



1517



1518



1519



1520



1521



1522



1523



1524



1525



1526



1527



1528



1529



1530



1531



1532



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14D

1533



1534



1535



1536



1537



1538



1539



1540



1541



1542



1543



1544



1545



1546



1547



1548



1549



1550



1551



1552



1553



1554



1555



1556



1557



1558



1559



1560



1561



1562



1563



1564



1565



1566



1567



1568



1569



1570



1571



1572



1573



1574



1575



1576



1577



1578



1579



1580



1581



1582



1583



1584



1585



1586



1587



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14E

1588



1589



1590



1591



1592



1593



1594



1595



1596



1597



1598



1599



1600



1601



1602



1603



1604



1605



1606



1607



1608



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14F

1609



1610



1611



1612



1613



1614



1615



1616



1617



1618



1619



1620



1621



1622



1623



1624



1625



1626



1627



1628



1629



1630



1631



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14G

1632



1633



1634



1635



1636



1637



1638



1639



1640



1641



1642



1643



1644



1645



1646



1647



1648



1649



1650



1651



1652



1653



1654



1655



1656



1657



1658



1659



1660



1661



1662



1663



1664



1665



1666



1667



1668



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

1669



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15A

1670



1671



1672



1673



1674



1675



1676



1677



1678



1679



1680



1681



1682



1683



1684



1685



1686



1687



1688



1689



1690



1691



1692



1693



1694



1695



1696



1697



1698



1699



1700



1701



1702



1703



1704



1705



1706



1707



1708



1709



1710



1711



1712



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15B

1713



1714



1715



1716



1717



1718



1719



1720



1721



1722



1723



1724



1725



1726



1727



1728



1729



1730



1731



1732



1733



1734



1735



1736



1737



1738



1739



1740



1741



1742



1743



1744



1745



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15C

1746



1747



1748



1749



1750



1751



1752



1753



1754



1755



1756



1757



1758



1759



1760



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15D

1761



1762



1763



1764



1765



1766



1767



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

1768



1769



1770



1771



1772



1773



1774



1775



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

1776



1777



1778



1779



1780



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18

1781



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

1782



1783



1784



1785



1786



1787



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

1788



1 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
January 26, 2021 

 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION 

 
Notice of Hearing for the Adoption and Amendment of 
Regulations of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

 
The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy will conduct a Public Hearing on Wednesday, March 3, 
2021, at 1:30 p.m. at the following location: 

 
Pursuant to Governor Steve Sisolak’s Emergency Directive 006, there will be no physical 

location for this meeting. The meeting can be listened to or viewed live over Zoom.   
 

Via Videoconference at Zoom: https://zoom.us/j/5886256671 
or 

Via Teleconference at 1 (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 588 625 6671 

 
The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the 
adoption and amendment of regulations that pertain to Chapters 453 and/or 639 of the Nevada 
Administrative Code. 
 
The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.060: 
 
Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510:  Schedule 1.  The proposed 
amendment to NAC 453.510 will add certain benzodiazepines to the controlled substances 
listed in schedule 1. 
(LCB File No. R143-20) 
 
1.  The need for and the purpose of the proposed regulation or amendment. 
 
The proposed amendment to NAC 453.510 will add designer benzodiazepines (Adinazolam 
(some trade or other names: 8-chloro-1-((dimethylamino)methyl)-6-phenyl-4H-s-triazolo(4,3-
a)(1,4)benzodiazepine; adinazolamum; Deracyn); Bromazolam (some trade or other name: 8-
bromo-1-methyl-6-phenyl H[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3a][1,4]benzodiazepine; XLI-268); Clonazolam 
(some trade or other names: 6-(2-chlorophenyl)-1-methyl-8-nitro-4H-[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-
a][1,4]benzodiazepine; clonitrazolam); Diclazepam (some trade or other names: 7-chloro-5-(2-
chlorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-1-methyl-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 7-chloro-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1-
methyl-1,3-dihydro-2H-benzo[e][1,4]diazepin-2-one; 2'-chlorodiazepam; Chlorodiazepam; Ro 5-
3448); Flualprazolam (some trade or other names: 8-chloro-6-(2-fluorophenyl)-1-methyl-4H-
[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine; 8-chloro-6-(2-fluoro-phenyl)-1-methyl-4h-
benzo[f][1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]diazepine; 2’-fluoro alprazolam; ortho-fluoro alprazolam); 

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
985 Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite 206 – Reno, NV  89521 

(775) 850-1440 • 1-800-364-2081• FAX  (775) 850-1444 

E-mail: pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov • Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

1789

mailto:pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov


2 
 

Flubromazepam (some trade or other names: 7-bromo-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-2H-1,4-
benzodiazepin-2-one; 7-Bromo-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1H-benzo[e][1,4]diazepin-2(3H)-one; 7-
bromo-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one); Flubromazolam (some trade or 
other names: 8-bromo-6-(2-fluorophenyl)-1-methyl-4H-[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine); 
Flunitrazolam (some trade or other names: 6-(2-fluorophenyl)-1-methyl-8-nitro-4H-
benzo[f][1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]diazepine); Flutoprazepam (some trade or other names: 7-
chloro-1-(cyclopropylmethyl)-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one); 
Meclonazepam (some trade or other names: (3S)-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-3-methyl-7-
nitro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; Ro 11-3128); Nifoxipam (some trade or other names: 5-(2-
fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-3-hydroxy-7-nitro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 1,3-Dihydro-5-(2-
fluorophenyl)-3-hydroxy-7-nitro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 3-hydroxydesmethylflunitrazepam; 
DP 370); Nitrazolam (some trade or other names: 1-methyl-8-nitro-6-phenyl-4H-
[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine); Norflurazepam (some trade or other names: 7-chloro-
5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; nor-Flurazepam; N-
Desalkylflurazepam; Desalkylflurazepam; Ro 5-3367); Phenazepam (some trade or other 
names: 7-bromo-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 7-bromo-5-(2-
chlorophenyl)-1,2-dihydro-3H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; BD 98; Fenazepam; Elzepam; 
Phezipam; Phenorelaxan; Phenzitat); Pyrazolam (some trade or other names: 8-bromo-1-
methyl-6-(2-pyridinyl)-4H-[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine; 8-bromo-1-methyl-6-(pyridin-
2-yl)-4H-benzo[f][1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]diazepine; Pirazolam), which are not currently listed 
under schedule I of the federal Controlled Substances Act (21 C.F.R. § 1308.11) to the list of 
controlled substances listed in schedule I in conformity with federal regulations of the Uniform 
Controlled Substances Act.   
 
2.   Either the terms or the substance of the regulations to be adopted and amended.   
 
A copy of the proposed regulation amendment is attached to this notice. 
 
3.  The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate and 
on the public: 
 

(a) Both adverse and beneficial effects. 
 
There should be no adverse economic impact from this regulation amendment on the 
regulated entities or on the public.  The regulation amendment will have a beneficial 
effect on the regulated entities and on the public since the drugs proposed for addition to 
schedule I have a high potential for abuse and no accepted medical use, and the 
regulation amendment will benefit public health, safety and welfare. 
 

(b) Both immediate and long-term effects. 
 
The immediate or long-term economic effects on regulated entities and on the public will 
be beneficial since the drugs proposed for addition to schedule I have a high potential for 
abuse and no accepted medical use, and the regulation amendment will benefit public 
health, safety and welfare. 
 

4.  The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the proposed regulation. 
 
There will be no additional or special costs incurred by the Board of Pharmacy for enforcement 
of this regulation amendment. 

1790

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%227-BROMO-5-(2-FLUOROPHENYL)-1%2C3-DIHYDRO-1%2C4-BENZODIAZEPIN-2-ONE%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%2012947024%5bStandardizedCID%5d
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%227-BROMO-5-(2-FLUOROPHENYL)-1%2C3-DIHYDRO-1%2C4-BENZODIAZEPIN-2-ONE%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%2012947024%5bStandardizedCID%5d
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%221%2C3-Dihydro-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-3-hydroxy-7-nitro-2H-1%2C4-benzodiazepin-2-one%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%203058221%5bStandardizedCID%5d
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%221%2C3-Dihydro-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-3-hydroxy-7-nitro-2H-1%2C4-benzodiazepin-2-one%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%203058221%5bStandardizedCID%5d
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%228-bromo-1-methyl-6-(pyridin-2-yl)-4H-benzo%5Bf%5D%5B1%2C2%2C4%5Dtriazolo%5B4%2C3-a%5D%5B1%2C4%5Ddiazepine%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%2012562545%5bStandardizedCID%5d
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%228-bromo-1-methyl-6-(pyridin-2-yl)-4H-benzo%5Bf%5D%5B1%2C2%2C4%5Dtriazolo%5B4%2C3-a%5D%5B1%2C4%5Ddiazepine%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%2012562545%5bStandardizedCID%5d
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pcsubstance/?term=%22Pirazolam%22%5bCompleteSynonym%5d%20AND%2012562545%5bStandardizedCID%5d


3 
 

 
5.  A description of and citation to any regulations of other state or local governmental agencies 
which the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement explaining why the 
duplication or overlapping is necessary.  If the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates a 
federal regulation, the notice must include the name of the regulating federal agency.  
 
The Board of Pharmacy is not aware of any similar regulations of any other state or local 
governmental agency that the proposed regulation amendment overlaps or duplicates.   
 
6.  If the regulation is required pursuant to federal law, a citation and description of the federal 
law.  
 
This regulation is not required by federal law. 
 
7.  If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that 
regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions. 
 
The Board of Pharmacy is not aware of any similar federal regulation amendments of the same 
activity in which the state regulation is more stringent.   
 
8.  Whether the proposed regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee. 
 
This regulation does not provide a new or increase of fees. 
 
 
Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Board may appear at the 
scheduled public hearing or may address their comments, data, views, or arguments, in written 
form, to the Board at pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov or to the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, 
985 Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite 206 – Reno, NV  89521. Written submissions must be 
received by the Board on or before March 3, 2021.  If no person who is directly affected by the 
proposed action appears to request time to make an oral presentation, the Board may proceed 
immediately to act upon any written submissions. 
 
This notice and the text of the proposed regulation are also available in the State of Nevada 
Register of Administrative Regulations which is prepared and published monthly by the 
Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant to NRS 233B.0653, and on the Internet at 
http://www.leg.state.nv.us.  Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation will also be mailed 
to members of the public upon request.   
 
Pursuant to NRS 233B.064(1), upon adoption of any regulation, the Board, if requested to do so 
by an interested person, either before adoption or within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise 
statement of the principal reasons for and against its adoption, and incorporate therein its 
reason for overruling the consideration urged against its adoption. 
 
This notice has been posted at www.notice.nv.gov and www.bop.nv.gov pursuant to Governor’s 
Declaration of Emergency Directive 006. 
 
 

1791

mailto:pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov
http://www.notice.nv.gov/


 

--1-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE  

STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

LCB File No. R143-20 

December 14, 2020 

EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted. 

 

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 453.146 and 639.070. 
 

A REGULATION relating to controlled substances; revising the controlled substances listed in 
schedule I; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 

 

Legislative Counsel’s Digest: 
 Existing law authorizes the State Board of Pharmacy to adopt regulations to add, delete 
or reschedule controlled substances listed in schedules I, II, III, IV and V of the Uniform 
Controlled Substances Act. (NRS 453.146) This regulation adds certain benzodiazepines, which 
are not currently listed under schedule I of the federal Controlled Substances Act (21 C.F.R. § 
1308.11), to the list of controlled substances in schedule I of the Uniform Controlled Substances 
Act. 

 Section 1.  NAC 453.510 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 453.510  1.  Schedule I consists of the drugs and other substances listed in this section by 

whatever official, common, usual, chemical or trade name designated. 

 2.  Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

opiates, including, without limitation, their isomers, esters, ethers, salts and salts of isomers, 

esters and ethers, whenever the existence of such isomers, esters, ethers and salts is possible 

within the specific chemical designation: 

 

Acetyl-alpha-methylfentanyl (N-[1-(1-methyl-2-phenethyl)-4-piperidinyl]-N-

phenylacetamide); 

1792



 

--2-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Acetylmethadol; 

Allylprodine; 

Alphacetylmethadol (except levo-alphacetylmethadol, commonly referred to as levo-alpha-

acetylmethadol, levomethadyl acetate or “LAAM”); 

Alphameprodine; 

Alphamethadol; 

Alphamethylfentanyl (N-[1-(alpha-methyl-beta-phenyl)ethyl-4-piperidyl] propionanilide; 

1-(1-methyl-2-phenylethyl)-4-(N-propanilido) piperidine); 

Alpha-methylthiofentanyl (N-[1-methyl-2-(2-thienyl)ethyl-4-piperidinyl]-N-

phenylpropanamide); 

Benzethidine; 

Betacetylmethadol; 

Beta-hydroxyfentanyl (N-[1-(2-hydroxy-2-phenethyl)-4-piperidinyl]-N-

phenylpropanamide); 

Beta-hydroxy-3-methylfentanyl (other name: N-[1-(2-hydroxy-2-phenethyl)-3-methyl-4-

piperidinyl]-N-phenylpropanamide); 

Beta-hydroxythiofentanyl (trade or other names: N-[1-[2-hydroxy-2-(thiophen-2-

yl)ethyl]piperidin-4-yl]-N-phenylpropionamide; N-[1-[2-hydroxy-2-(2-thienyl)ethyl]-4-

piperidinyl]-N-phenylpropanamide); 

Betameprodine; 

Betamethadol; 

Betaprodine; 

1793



 

--3-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Butyryl fentanyl (trade or other names: N-(1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)-N-

phenylbutyramide; N-(1-phenethylpiperidin-4-yl)-N-phenylbutanamide); 

Clonitazene; 

Dextromoramide; 

Diampromide; 

Diethylthiambutene; 

Difenoxin; 

Dimenoxadol; 

Dimepheptanol; 

Dimethylthiambutene; 

Dioxaphetyl butyrate; 

Dipipanone; 

Ethylmethylthiambutene; 

Etonitazene; 

Etoxeridine; 

Furethidine; 

Hydroxypethidine; 

Ketobemidone; 

Levomoramide; 

Levophenacylmorphan; 

3-Methylfentanyl (N-[3-methyl-1-(2-phenylethyl)-4-piperidyl]-N-phenylpropanamide); 

3-Methylthiofentanyl (N-[(3-methyl-1-(2-thienyl)ethyl-4-piperidinyl]-N-

phenylpropanamide); 

1794



 

--4-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Morpheridine; 

MPPP (1-methyl-4-phenyl-4-propionoxypiperidine); 

Noracymethadol; 

Norlevorphanol; 

Normethadone; 

Norpipanone; 

Para-fluorofentanyl (N-(4-fluorophenyl)-N-[1-(2-phenethyl)-4-piperidinyl]propanamide); 

PEPAP (1-(-2-phenethyl)-4-phenyl-4-acetoxypiperidine); 

Phenadoxone; 

Phenampromide; 

Phenomorphan; 

Phenoperidine; 

Piritramide; 

Proheptazine; 

Properidine; 

Propiram; 

Racemoramide; 

Thiofentanyl (N-phenyl-N-[1-(2-thienyl)ethyl-4-piperidinyl]-propanamide); 

Tilidine; or 

Trimeperidine. 

 

 3.  Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any of the following 

opium derivatives, including, without limitation, their salts, isomers and salts of isomers, 

1795



 

--5-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

whenever the existence of such salts, isomers and salts of isomers is possible within the specific 

chemical designation: 

 

Acetorphine; 

Acetyl fentanyl; 

Acetyldihydrocodeine; 

Benzylmorphine; 

Codeine methylbromide; 

Codeine-N-Oxide; 

Cyprenorphine; 

Desomorphine; 

Dihydromorphine; 

Drotebanol; 

Etorphine (except hydrochloride salt); 

Heroin; 

Hydromorphinol; 

Methyldesorphine; 

Methyldihydromorphine; 

Morphine methylbromide; 

Morphine methylsulfonate; 

Morphine-N-Oxide; 

Myrophine; 

Nicocodeine; 

1796



 

--6-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Nicomorphine; 

Normorphine; 

Pholcodine; or 

Thebacon. 

 

 4.  Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, 

compound, mixture or preparation which contains any quantity of the following hallucinogenic 

substances, including, without limitation, their salts, isomers and salts of isomers, whenever the 

existence of such salts, isomers and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical 

designation: 

 

Adinazolam (some trade or other names: 8-chloro-1-((dimethylamino)methyl)-6-phenyl -

4H-s-triazolo(4,3-a)(1,4)benzodiazepine; adinazolamum; Deracyn); 

 

Alpha-ethyltryptamine (some trade or other names: ET, Trip); 

 

Alpha-methyltryptamine (some trade or other names: AMT); 

 

Bromazolam (some trade or other names: 8-bromo-1-methyl-6-phenyl-

4H[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine; XLI-268); 

 

1,4-Butanediol (some trade or other names: 1,4-butyleneglycol, dihydroxybutane, 

tetramethylene glycol, butane 1,4-diol, SomatoPro, Soma Solutions, Zen); 

1797



 

--7-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 

4-bromo-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine (some trade or other names: 4-bromo-2,5-

dimethoxy-alpha-methylphenethylamine; 4-bromo-2,5-DMA); 

 

4-bromo-2,5-dimethoxyphenethylamine (some trade or other names: Nexus, 2C-B); 

 

1-Butyl-3-(1-naphthoyl)indole-7173 (some trade or other names: JWH-073); 

 

2-(4-Chloro-2,5-dimethoxyphenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-C); 

 

Clonazolam (some trade or other names: 6-(2-chlorophenyl)-1-methyl-8-nitro-4H-

[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine; clonitrazolam); 

 

1-cyclohexylethyl-3-(2-methoxyphenylacetyl)indole (some trade or other names: SR-18; 

BTM-8; RCS-8); 

 

Diclazepam (some trade or other names: 7-chloro-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-1-

methyl-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 7-chloro-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1-methyl-1,3-

dihydro-2H-benzo[e][1,4]diazepin-2-one; 2’-chlorodiazepam; Chlorodiazepam; Ro 5-

3448); 

 

2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine (some trade or other names: 2,5-dimethoxy-alpha-

methylphenethylamine; 2,5-DMA); 

1798



 

--8-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 

2,5-dimethoxy-4-ethylamphet-amine (some trade or other names: DOET); 

 

2-(2,5-Dimethoxy-4-ethylphenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-E); 

 

2-(2,5-Dimethoxy-4-methylphenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-D); 

 

2-(2,5-Dimethoxy-4-nitro-phenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-N); 

 

2,5-Dimethoxy-N-(2-methoxybenzyl) phenethylamine (NBOMe) and any derivative 

thereof (some trade or other names: 2C-X-NBOMe; N-benzylated phenethylamines; N-

o-methoxybenzyl analogs; NBOMe; 25H-NBOMe; 25B-NBOMe; 25C-NBOMe; 25D-

NBOMe; 25E-NBOMe; 25I-NBOMe; 25N-NBOMe; 25P-NBOMe; 25T2-NBOMe; 

25T4-NBOMe; 25T7-NBOMe); 

 

2-(2,5-Dimethoxy-4-(n)-propylphenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-P); 

 

2,5-dimethoxy-4-(n)-propylthiophenethylamine (some trade or other names: 2C-T-7); 

 

2-(2,5-Dimethoxyphenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-H); 

 

3-[(2-Dimethylamino)ethyl]-1H-indol-4-yl acetate (some trade or other names: 4-acetoxy-

N, N-dimethyltryptamine;4-AcO-DMT; psilacetin; O-acetylpsilocin; 4-acetoxy-DMT); 

1799



 

--9-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 

5-(1,1-Dimethylheptyl)-2-[(1R,3S)-3-hydroxycyclohexyl]-phenol-7297 (some trade or 

other names: CP-47,497); 

 

5-(1,1-Dimethyloctyl)-2-[(1R,3S)-3-hydroxycyclohexyl]-phenol-7298 (some trade or other 

names: cannabicyclohexanol; CP-47,497 C8 homologue); 

 

4-ethylnaphthalen-1-yl-(1-pentylindol-3-yl)methanone (some trade or other names: (4-

ethyl-1-naphthalenyl)(1-pentyl-1H-indol-3-yl)-methanone; JWH-210); 

 

2-[4-(Ethylthio)-2,5-dimethoxyphenyl]ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-T-2); 

 

Flualprazolam (some trade or other names: 8-chloro-6-(2-fluorophenyl)-1-methyl-4H-

[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine; 8-chloro-6-(2-fluoro-phenyl)-1-methyl-4h-

benzo[f][1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]diazepine; 2’-fluoro alprazolam; ortho-fluoro 

alprazolam); 

 

Flubromazepam (some trade or other names: 7-bromo-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-

2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 7-Bromo-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1H-benzo[e][1,4]diazepin-

2(3H)-one; 7-bromo-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one); 

 

Flubromazolam (some trade or other names: 8-bromo-6-(2-fluorophenyl)-1-methyl-4H-

(1,2,4)triazolo(4,3-a)(1,4)benzodiazepine); 

1800



 

--10-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 

Flunitrazolam (some trade or other names: 6-(2-fluorophenyl)-1-methyl-8-nitro-4H-

benzo[f][1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]diazepine); 

 

[1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1H-indazol-3-yl](naphthalen-1-yl)methanone (some trade or other 

names: THJ-2201; 5-fluoro THJ 018; AM2201 indazole analog; fluorpentyl JWH-018 

indazole);  

 

[1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1H-indol-3-yl]-1-naphthalenyl-methanone (some trade or other names: 

1-(5-fluoropentyl)-3-(1-naphthoyl)indole; AM-2201); 

 

[1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1H-indol-3-yl]-(2-iodophyenyl)-methanone (some trade or other 

names: 1-(5-fluoropentyl)-3-(2-iodobenzoyl)indole; AM-694); 

 

(1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1H-indol-3-yl)(2,2,3,3-tetramethylcyclopropyl)methanone (some trade 

or other names: XLR-11); 

 

1-(5-fluoropentyl)-N-(tricyclo[3.3.1.13,7]dec-1-yl)-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide (some 

trade or other names: N-((3s,5s,7s)-adamantan-1-yl)-1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1H-indazole-3-

carboxamide; APINACA 5-fluoropentyl analog; 5F-AKB48; 5-Fluoro-AKB48; 5F-

APINACA; 5-Fluoro-APINACA; 

 

1801



 

--11-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

1-(5-fluoropentyl)-8-quinolinyl ester-1H-indole-3-carboxylic acid (some trade or other 

names: 1-(5-fluoropentyl)-1H-indole-3-carboxylic acid 8-quinolinyl ester; 5-Fluoro-PB-

22; 5F-PB-22); 

 

Flutoprazepam (some trade or other names: 7-chloro-1-(cyclopropylmethyl)-5-(2-

fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one); 

 

2-(4-Iodo-2,5-dimethoxyphenyl)ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-I); 

 

2-[4-(Isopropylthio)-2,5-dimethoxyphenyl]ethanamine (some trade or other names: 2C-T-

4); 

 

1-hexyl-3-(1-naphthoyl)indole (some trade or other names: JWH-019); 

 

Meclonazepam (some trade or other names: (3S)-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-3-

methyl-7-nitro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; Ro 11-3128); 

 

4-methoxyamphetamine (some trade or other names: 4-methoxy-alpha-

methylphenethylamine; para-methoxyamphetamine; PMA); 

 

(4-methoxy-1-naphthalenyl)(1-pentyl-1H-indol-3-yl)-methanone (some trade or other 

names: JWH-081); 

 

1802



 

--12-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

5-methoxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

 

5-methoxy-N, N-diisopropyltryptamine (some trade or other names: 5-meO-DIPT); 

 

4-methyl-2,5-dimethoxyamphetamine (some trade or other names: 4-methyl-2,5-

dimethoxy-alpha-methylphenethylamine; “DOM”; “STP”); 

 

(4-methyl-1-naphthalenyl)(1-pentyl-1H-indol-3-yl)-methanone (some trade or other 

names: JWH-122); 

 

3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 

 

3,4-methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA); 

 

3,4-methylenedioxy-N-ethylamphetamine (commonly referred to as N-ethyl-alpha-methyl-

3,4(methylenedioxy) phenethylamine, N-ethyl MDA, MDE, MDEA); 

 

1-[2-(4-Morpholinyl)ethyl]-3-(1-naphthoyl)indole-7200 (some trade or other names: JWH-

200); 

 

N-(1-adamantyl)-1-pentyl-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide (some trade or other names: 1-

pentyl-N-tricyclo[3.3.1.13,7]dec-1-yl-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide; APINACA; 

AKB48); 

1803



 

--13-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 

N-(1-amino-3,3-dimethyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1-(cyclohexylmethyl)-1H-indazole-3-

carboxamide (trade or other names: ADB-CHMINACA; MAB-CHMINACA); 

 

N-(1-amino-3,3-dimethyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1-pentyl-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide (trade or 

other name: ADB-PINACA); 

 

N-(1-amino-3-methyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1-pentyl-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide (some trade 

or other names: AB-PINACA);  

 

N-(1-amino-3-methyl-1-oxobutan-2-yl)-1-(4-fluorobenzyl)-1H-indazole-3-carboxamide 

(trade or other name: AB-FUBINACA); 

 

N-[(1S)-1-(aminocarbonyl)-2-methylpropyl]-1-(cyclohexylmethyl)-1H-indazole-3-

carboxamide (trade or other name: AB-CHMINACA); 

 

N-hydroxy-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine (commonly referred to as N-hydroxy-alpha-

methyl-3,4(methylenedioxy) phenethylamine, N-hydroxy MDA); 

 

2-(2-methoxyphenyl)-1-(1-pentylindol-3-yl)ethanone (some trade or other names: 1-(1-

pentyl-1H-indol-3-yl)-2-(2-methoxyphenyl)-ethanone; 1-pentyl-3-(2-

methoxyphenylacetyl)indole; JWH-250); 

 

1804



 

--14-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Nifoxipam (some trade or other names: 5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-3-hydroxy-7-

nitro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 1,3-Dihydro-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-3-hydroxy-7-

nitro-2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 3-hydroxydesmethylflunitrazepam; DP 370); 

 

Nitrazolam (some trade or other names: 1-methyl-8-nitro-6-phenyl-4H-

[1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]benzodiazepine); 

 

Norflurazepam (some trade or other names: 7-chloro-5-(2-fluorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-

2H-1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; nor-Flurazepam; N-Desalkylflurazepam; 

Desalkylflurazepam; Ro 5-3367); 

 

1-Pentyl-3-(2-chlorophenylacetyl)indole (some trade or other names: JWH-203); 

 

1-Pentyl-3-(4-cholor-1-naphthoyl)indole (some trade or other names: JWH-398); 

 

1-Pentyl-3-[(4-methoxy)-benzoyl]indole (some trade or other names: SR-19; BTM-4; 

RCS-4); 

 

1-Pentyl-3-(1-naphthoyl)indole-7118 (some trade or other names: JWH-018; AM678); 

 

(1-pentylindol-3-yl)-(2,2,3,3-tetramethylcyclopropyl)methanone (some trade or other 

names: UR-144); 

 

1805



 

--15-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

1-pentyl-N-(tricyclo[3.3.1.13,7]dec-1-yl-1H-indole-3 carboxamide (some trade or other 

names: APICA; JWH-018 adamantyl carboxamide; 2NE1; SDB-001);  

 

1-pentyl-8-quinolinyl ester-1H-indole-3-carboxylic acid (some trade or other names: 1-

pentyl-1H-indole-3-carboxylic acid 8-quinolinyl ester; PB-22; QUPIC); 

 

Phenazepam (some trade or other names: 7-bromo-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1,3-dihydro-2H-

1,4-benzodiazepin-2-one; 7-bromo-5-(2-chlorophenyl)-1,2-dihydro-3H-1,4-

benzodiazepin-2-one; BD 98; Fenazepam; Elzepam; Phezipam; Phenorelaxan; 

Phenzitat);  

 

Pyrazolam (some trade or other names: 8-bromo-1-methyl-6-(2-pyridinyl)-4H-

(1,2,4)triazolo(4,3-a)(1,4)benzodiazepine; 8-bromo-1-methyl-6-(pyridin-2-yl)-4H-

benzo[f][1,2,4]triazolo[4,3-a][1,4]diazepine; Pirazolam); 

 

3,4,5-trimethoxyamphetamine; 

 

Bufotenine (some trade or other names: 3-(beta-dimethylaminoethyl)-5-hydroxyindole; 3-

(2-dimethyl-aminoethyl)-5-indolol; N, N-dimethylserotonin; 5-hydroxy-N, N-

dimethyltryptamine; mappine); 

 

Diethyltryptamine (some trade or other names: DET; N,N-Diethyltryptamine); 

 

1806



 

--16-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Dimethyltryptamine (some trade or other names: DMT; N,N-DMT; N,N-

Dimethyltryptamine); 

 

Fluorophenylpiperazine (some trade or other names: FPP, pFPP, 2-fluorophenylpiperazine, 

3-fluorophenylpiperazine, 4-fluorophenylpiperazine); 

 

Gamma butyrolactone (some trade or other names: GBL, Gamma Buty Lactone, 4-

butyrolactone, dihydro-2(3H)-furanone, tetrahydro-2-furanone, Gamma G, GH Gold); 

 

Gamma hydroxy butyric acid (some trade or other names: GHB); 

 

Ibogaine (some trade or other names: 7-ethyl-6, 6 beta, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13-octahydro-2-

methoxy-6, 9-methano-5H-pyrido (1’,2’:1,2) azepino (5,4-b) indole; Tabernanthe 

iboga); 

 

Lysergic acid diethylamide; 

 

Marijuana; 

 

Mescaline; 

 

Methoxyphenylpiperazine (some trade or other names: MeOPP, pMPP, 4-MPP, 2-MeOPP, 

3-MeOPP, 4-MeOPP); 

1807



 

--17-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 

Parahexyl (some trade or other names: 3-Hexyl-1-hydroxy-7, 8, 9, 10-tetrahydro-6,6,9-

trimethyl-6H-dibenzo[b,d]pyran; Synhexyl); 

 

Peyote (meaning all parts of the plant presently classified botanically as Lophophora 

williamsii Lemaire, whether growing or not, the seeds thereof, any extract from any part 

of such plant, and every compound, manufacture, salts, derivative, mixture, or 

preparation of such plant, its seeds or extracts); 

 

N-benzylpiperazine (some trade or other names: BZP, 1-benzylpiperazine); 

 

N-ethyl-3-piperidyl benzilate; 

 

N-methyl-3-piperidyl benzilate; 

 

Psilocybin; 

 

Psilocin; 

 

Salvinorin A (some trade or other names: Divinorin A; Methyl 

(2S,4aR,6aR,7R,9S,10aS,10bR)-9-(acetyloxy)-2-(furan-3-yl)-6a,10b-dimethyl-4,10- 

dioxododecahydro-2H-benzo[f]isochromene-7-carboxylate); 

 

1808



 

--18-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Ethylamine analog of phencyclidine (some trade or other names: N-ethyl-1-

phenylcyclohexylamine; (1-phenylcyclohexyl) ethylamine; N-(1-phenylcyclohexyl) 

ethylamine; cyclohexamine; PCE); 

 

Pyrrolidine analog of phencyclidine (some trade or other names: 1-(1-phenylcyclohexyl)-

pyrrolidine; PCPy; PHP); 

 

1-(1-(2-thienyl)-cyclohexyl)-pyrrolidine (some trade or other names: TCPy); 

 

Thiophene analog of phencyclidine (some trade or other names: 1-(1-(2-thienyl)-

cyclohexyl)-piperidine; 2-thienyl analog of phencyclidine; TPCP; TCP); or 

 

Trifluoromethylphenylpiperazine (some trade or other names: 1-(3-

trifluoromethylphenyl)piperazine; 3-trifluoromethylphenylpiperazine; TFMPP). 

 

For the purposes of this subsection, “isomer” includes, without limitation, the optical, position or 

geometric isomer. 

 5.  All parts of the plant presently classified botanically as Datura, whether growing or not, 

the seeds thereof, any extract from any part of such plant or plants, and every compound, 

manufacture, salt derivative, mixture or preparation of such plant or plants, its seeds or extracts, 

unless substances consistent with those found in such plants are present in formulations that the 

Food and Drug Administration of the United States Department of Health and Human Services 

has approved for distribution. 

1809



 

--19-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

 6.  Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, 

compound, mixture or preparation which contains any quantity of phencyclidine, mecloqualone 

or methaqualone having a depressant effect on the central nervous system, including, without 

limitation, their salts, isomers and salts of isomers, whenever the existence of such salts, isomers 

and salts of isomers is possible within the specific chemical designation. 

 7.  Unless specifically excepted or unless listed in another schedule, any material, 

compound, mixture or preparation which contains any quantity of the following substances 

having a stimulant effect on the central nervous system, including, without limitation, their salts, 

isomers and salts of isomers: 

 

Alpha-PBP (some trade or other names: 1-phenyl-2-(pyrrolidin-1-yl)butan-1-one, alpha-

pyrrolidinobutiophenone); 

Alpha-PVP (some trade or other names: 1-phenyl-2-(1-pyrrolidinyl)-1-pentanone, alpha-

pyrrolidinopentiophenone, alpha-pyrrolidinovalerophenone, O-2387); 

Aminorex; 

Butylone (some trade or other names: 1-(1,3-benzodioxol-5-yl)-2-(methylamino)butan-1-

one, β-keto-N-methylbenzodioxolylpropylamine, bk-MBDB); 

Cathinone (some trade or other names: 2-amino-1-phenyl-1-propanone; alpha-

aminopropiophenone; 2-aminopropiophenone; norephedrone); 

Dimethylone (some trade or other names: 3,4-methylenedioxy-N,Ndimethylcathinone; 

N,N-dimethyl MDCATH; N,N-dimethyl-3,4- methylenedioxycathinone; N,N-dimethyl-

β-keto-3,4-methylenedioxyamphetamine; 1-(1,3-benzodioxol-5-yl)-2-

(dimethylamino)propan-1-one; bk-MDDMA);  

1810



 

--20-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Ethylone (some trade or other names: N-ethyl-3,4-methylenedioxycathinone; 1-(1,3- 

benzodioxol-5-yl)-2-(ethylamino)propan-1-one; MDEC; bk-MDEA);  

Fenethylline; 

Fluoroamphetamine (some trade or other names: 2-fluoroamphetamine, 3-

fluoroamphetamine, 4-fluoroamphetamine, 2-FA, 3-FA, 4-FA, PFA); 

Fluoromethcathinone (some trade or other names: 4-Fluoro-N-methylcathinone, 1-(4-

fluorophenyl)-2-(methylamino)propan-1-one, 4-Fluoromethcathinone (Flephedrone), 4-

FMC, 3-Fluoro-N-methylcathinone, 1-(3-fluorophenyl)-2-2(methylamino)propan-1-

one, 3-Fluoromethcathinone, 3-FMC, 2-Fluoro-N-methylcathinone, 1-(2-fluorophenyl)-

2-(methylamino)propan-1-one, 2-FMC); 

Mephedrone (some trade or other names: Methylmethcathinone, 4-Methylmethcathinone, 

4-MMC, 4-Methylephedrone); 

Methamphetamine; 

Methcathinone (some trade or other names: N-Methylcathinone, cat); 

Methedrone (some trade or other names: Methoxymethcathinone, 4-

Methoxymethcathinone, bk-PMMA, methoxyphedrine); 

4-methyl-alpha-pyrrolidinopropiophenone (some trade or other names: 1-(4-

methylphenyl)-2-(pyrrolidin-1-yl)-propan-1-one, 4-MePPP); 

(±)cis-4-methylaminorex ((+)cis-4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-5-phenyl-2-oxazolamine); 

Methylenedioxypyrovalerone (some trade or other names: 3,4-

Methylenedioxypyrovalerone, MDPV); 

Methylethcathinone (some trade or other names: 2-(ethylamino)-1-(4-

methylphenyl)propan-1-one, 4-MEC, 4-methyl-N-ethylcathinone); 

1811



 

--21-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Methylone (some trade or other names: Methylenedioxy-N-methylcathinone, 

Methylenedioxymethcathinone, 3,4-Methylenedioxy-N-methylcathinone, bk-MDMA); 

N,N-dimethylamphetamine (commonly referred to as N,N-alpha-trimethyl-

benzeneethanamine; N,N-alpha-trimethylphenethylamine); 

N-ethylamphetamine;  

Naphyrone (some trade or other names: 1-(naphthalen-2-yl)-2(pyrrolidin-1-yl)pentan-1-

one, naphthylpyrovalerone, naphpyrovalerone, NRG-1, O-2482);  

Pentedrone (some trade or other names: 2-(methylamino)-1-phenylpentan-1-one, α-

methylaminovalerophenone); or 

Pentylone (trade or other names: 1-(1,3-benzodioxol-5-yl)-2-(methylamino)pentan-1-one; 

beta-keto-methylbenzodioxolylpentanamine; bk-MBDP; bk-methyl-K). 

 

 8.  Unless specifically listed in another schedule, coca leaves, cocaine base or free base, or a 

salt, compound, derivative, isomer or preparation thereof which is chemically equivalent or 

identical to such substances, and any quantity of material, compound, mixture or preparation 

which contains coca leaves, cocaine base or cocaine free base or its isomers or any of the salts of 

cocaine, except decocainized coca leaves or extractions which do not contain cocaine or 

ecgonine. 

 9.  Unless specifically listed in another schedule, Tetrahydrocannabinols (natural or synthetic 

equivalents of substances contained in the plant, or in the resinous extractives of Cannabis, sp. or 

synthetic substances, derivatives and their isomers with similar chemical structure and 

pharmacological activity such as the following:  

 

1812



 

--22-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R143-20 

Delta 9 cis or trans tetrahydrocannabinol, and their optical isomers, also known as Delta 1 

cis or trans tetrahydrocannabinol, and their optical isomers; 

Delta 8 cis or trans tetrahydrocannabinol, and their optical isomers, also known as Delta 6 

cis or trans tetrahydrocannabinol, and their optical isomers; 

Delta 3, 4 cis or trans tetrahydrocannabinol, and its optical isomers; 

Tetrahydrocannabinols contained in the genus Cannabis or in the resinous extractives of 

the genus Cannabis; 

Synthetic equivalents of tetrahydrocannabinol substances or synthetic substances, 

derivatives and their isomers with a similar chemical structure; and 

Since nomenclature of these substances is not internationally standardized, compounds of 

these structures, regardless of numerical designation of atomic positions covered). 

 

 10.  Unless specifically listed in another schedule, any material, compound, mixture or 

preparation which contains any quantity of CBD (natural or synthetic equivalents of the 

substances contained in the plant or in the resinous extractives of Cannabis sp. or synthetic 

substances, derivatives and their isomers with similar chemical structure and pharmacological 

activity). 

 

1813



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

1814



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21A

1815



 

 

Documentation for this Agenda Item will be provided at a later date. 

1816



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21B

1817



 

1 
 

Proposed Regulation of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

Workshop – March 4, 2021 

Explanation – Language in blue italics is new; language in red text [omitted material] is language 

to be omitted, and language in green text indicates prior Board-approved amendments that are in 

the process of being codified. 

AUTHORITY:  NRS 453.162; NRS 453.163; NRS 639.070; NRS 639.23916  

A REGULATION relating to the database of the computerized program established 

pursuant to NRS 453.162; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 

 

Section. 1.   NAC 453.010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1. “Board” means the State Board of Pharmacy. 

      2. “Electronic health record” has the meaning ascribed to it in 42 U.S.C. § 17921. 

 3. “Emergency situation,” within the meaning of subsection 2 of NRS 453.256 and these 

regulations, means a situation in which a prescribing practitioner determines that: 

     (a) Immediate administration of the controlled substance is necessary for the proper treatment 

of the patient; 

     (b) No appropriate alternative treatment is available, including administration of a drug 

which is not a controlled substance under schedule II of the Uniform Controlled Substances Act; 

and 

     (c) It is not reasonably possible for the prescribing practitioner to provide a written 

prescription to be presented to the person dispensing the substance before he or she dispenses it. 

 4. “Integrate” and integration” have the meaning ascribed to them in NRS 453.162. 

5. “Patient utilization report” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 639.23507. 

6. “Prescriber activity report” means a summary of a practitioner’s prescribing history 

in the database of the computerized program established pursuant to NRS 453.162. 

Section. 2.  NAC Chapter 453 is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read as 

follows: 

The records of a patient in the database of the computerized program established pursuant 

to NRS 453.162 may be integrated with the electronic health records of a practitioner, subject 

to the following requirements: 

1.  The practitioner must be enrolled with the Board for Internet access to the database 

of the computerized program established pursuant to NRS 453.162; 

2.  The electronic health records must be maintained in conformance with all 

applicable federal and state laws;  

3.  An audit trail must be maintained of all user activity to access the database and 

obtain a patient utilization report;  

4.  The audit trail must be retained in conformance with NRS 629.051(1) and readily 

retrievable upon request by a representative of the Board; and 

1818

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec256
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162


 

2 
 

5.  A delegate designated pursuant to NAC 453.070, NAC 453.074 or LCB File No. 

R035-19 [pharmacist] is not authorized by such designation to access electronic health 

records. 

Section. 3.  NAC Chapter 453 is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read as 

follows: 

1.  Access to the database of the computerized program established pursuant to NRS 

453.162 to obtain a patient utilization report will be granted to:   

   (a)  Any person employed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs and 

authorized access pursuant to 38 U.S.C. §1730B;  

(b)  Any person authorized access under the State Medicaid Program pursuant to 42 

U.S.C. §1396r–8(g) and 42 U.S.C. §1396w–3a; and 

(c)  Any person authorized access under an agreement for interstate data sharing 

entered into pursuant to NRS 453.163(2). 

2.  As used in this section, “Medicaid” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 

439B.120. 

Section. 4.  NAC Chapter 453 is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read as 

follows: 

1.  Any person authorized to access the database of the computerized program 

established pursuant to NRS 453.162 shall review and comply with the “PMP AWARxE 

Requestor User Support Manual, Nevada Prescription Drug Monitoring Program, Version 

2.0”, effective 12/2018, which is adopted by reference and available at: 

https://bop.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/bopnvgov/content/Links/12.14.18.NV%20Requestor%20User%20Sup
port%20Manual.pdf 

2. The Board will periodically review the publication adopted by reference pursuant to 

subsection 1 and determine within 120 days after the review whether any change made to that 

publication is appropriate for application in this State. If the Board does not disapprove a 

change to the publication within 120 days after the review, the change is deemed to be 

approved by the Board. 

Section. 5.  Chapter 453 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the following 

provisions: 

A law enforcement officer may obtain a patient utilization report or a prescriber activity report 

from the database of the computerized program established pursuant to NRS 453.162 by 

completing a form furnished by the Board certifying pursuant to NRS 453.165 that the law 

enforcement officer is investigating suspected illegal activity related to the prescribing, 

dispensing or use of controlled substances.   

Section. 6.  Chapter 453 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the following 

provisions: 

Any practitioner or other person granted access to the database of the computerized program 

established pursuant to NRS 453.162 may only access the data electronically and may not 

otherwise reproduce, copy or transfer the data either in hardcopy or in electronic format. 

1819

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Division/Legal/LawLibrary/NRS/NRS-439B.html#NRS439BSec120
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/Division/Legal/LawLibrary/NRS/NRS-439B.html#NRS439BSec120
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec162
https://bop.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/bopnvgov/content/Links/12.14.18.NV%20Requestor%20User%20Support%20Manual.pdf
https://bop.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/bopnvgov/content/Links/12.14.18.NV%20Requestor%20User%20Support%20Manual.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22

1820



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23

1821



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24

 

1822


	Cover
	March 2021 Amended Agenda
	3.	Approval of the January 13, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
	4. March 2021 Consent Agenda
	A.	Advances Diabetes Supply – Carlsbad, CA
	B.	Allergy Partners Therapeutics – Asheville, NC
	C.	Bristol Pharmacy – Flower Mound, TX
	D.	Free State Pharmacy, LLC – Lawrence, KS
	E.	JourniRx, Inc. – Portland, OR
	F.	Kingsley Rx – Orange Park, FL
	G.	Lumicera Health Services, LLC – Gaithersburg, MD
	H.	OnePoint Patient Care – Tempe, AZ
	I.	Pembrooke Health Services LLC – Waldorf, MD
	J.	PFSP – Rahway, NJ
	K.	Valley Vet Supply – Marysville, KS
	L.	Wegmans Food Markets, Inc. – Cheektowaga, NY
	
M. Broadway Apothecary – Eugene, OR 

	N.	Clark’s Pharmacy Rx – Carefree, AZ
	O.	Covetrus Pharmacy Services, LLC – Phoenix, AZ
	P.	DeliverCareRx Pharmacy, LLC – Livermore, CA
	Q.	Elements Compounding Pharmacy – Mesa, AZ
	R.	Schaefer Drugs, Inc. – Wellington, FL
	S.	Smith Drug Co. – Pleasant Grove, UT
	T.	Your Health Pharmacy – Pompano Beach, FL
	U.	Empire DME, Inc. – Brooklyn, NY
	V.	ProCare Biomedical Repair, LLC – Houston, TX
	W.	Strive Medical LLC – Irving, TX
	X.	Aimmune Therapeutics, Inc. – Brisbane, CA
	Y.	Ascendis Pharma, Inc. – Palo Alto, CA
	Z.	Devatis, Inc. – San Clemente, CA
	AA.	Kyowa Kirin, Inc. – Bedminster, NJ
	BB.	Purisys, LLC – Athens, GA
	CC.	Saol Therapeutics, Inc. – Roswell, GA
	DD.	TWi Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. – Paramus, NJ
	EE.	Virtus Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Bristol, PA
	
FF.	MacroGenics, Inc. – Rockville, MD

	GG.	Dynasty Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Lynnwood, WA
	HH.	Independent Pharmacy Distributor LLC – High Point, NC
	II.	Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – New Haven, CT
	JJ.	Assertio Therapeutics, Inc. – Lake Forest, IL
	KK.	Orphazyme US, Inc. – Chicago, IL
	LL.	Amatheon Animal Health, LLC – Miami, FL
	MM.	Bioverativ U.S. LLC – Reno, NV
	NN.	ER at S. Las Vegas Blvd. – Las Vegas, NV
	OO.	Grover C. Dils Medical Center – Caliente, NV 

	5. March 2021 Discipline
	A. Charles Fleisher, MD (20-227-CS-S)
	B. Michael L. Gerber, H.M.D (17-015-CS-N)
	C. Eric Martin Math, MD (19-083-CS-N)
	D. Daniel Niel, RPH  (20-090-RPH-S)
	E. Vidur Mahadeva, MD (20-111-CS-N)

	6.	Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician in Training Registration
	A.	Jazmine Hewitt
	B.	Joseph Repetti

	7. Applications for Pharmaceutical Technician Registration– Appearance.
	A.	Leslie Costanza
	B.	Kishan Desai

	C.	Athiena Stafford 

	8. Applications for Controlled Substance Registration– 
Ryan Doucette 

	9.	Application for Nevada Pharmacy 
	A.	Atlas Pharmacy and Medical Supply – Las Vegas, NV 
	B.	One Point Patient Care – Las Vegas, NV
	C.	Optum Frontier Therapies II, LLC – Las Vegas, NV 
	D.	Silver State Drug – Caliente, NV
	E.	Value Pharmacy – North Las Vegas, NV

	10.	Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License 
	A.	AlleReach Pharmacy – Dallas, TX
	B.	Carolina Infusion – Ridgeland, SC
	C.	Dragonfly Infusion Services – Wintersville, OH
	D.	Meds In Motion – Draper, UT

	11.	Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy License 
	A.	Nextcare Pharmacy – Houston, TX
	B.	TheraCom – Brooks, KY

	12.	Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases 
	A.	Aircare Medical Inc. – Henderson, NV 
	B.	Barber DME Supply Group – Nellis AFB, NV
	C.	Kinex Medical Company – Las Vegas, NV 
	D.	Patients Choice LLC – North Las Vegas, NV 
	E.	VieMed – Reno, NV

	13.	Application for Nevada Wholesaler License 
	A.	Lincare, Inc. – Sparks, NV 
	B.	Optum Frontier Therapies II, LLC 

	14.	Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License 
	A.	Animal Health International, Inc. – Red Bluff, CA 
	B.	Celgene Corporation – Allentown, PA 
	C.	Celgene Corporation – Summit, NJ 
	D.	Huvepharma, Inc. – St. Louis, MO 
	E.	ICU Medical Sales, Inc. – Lancaster, TX 
	F.	Pharmacia & Upjohn Company LLC – Kalamazoo, MI 
	G.	Upjohn US 1 LLC – Peapack, NJ 

	15.	Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility 
	A.	Eagle, Inc. – Hoover, AL
	B.	Fagron Sterile Services LLC – Wichita, KS
	C.	Nephron Sterile Compounding Center, LLC – West Columbia, SC
	D.	Wells Pharma of Houston, LLC – Houston, TX

	16. Application for Pharmacist Registration by Reciprocation - 
Audrey Cho 

	17.	Request for approval of Continuing Education provided by the Nevada Geriatric Education Center
	18.	General Counsel Report
	19.	Executive Secretary Report:
	20. March 2021 Public Hearing - Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510: Schedule 1
	21. March 2021 Workshop
	A.	Amendment Of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.715, 639.718 and 639 .720: Use of Mechanical Device to Dispense Prescription Drugs
	B.	Amendment Of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) Chapter 453: Prescription Monitoring Program integration




